City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG)

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC)
Meeting Minutes
May 22, 2025

1. Call to Order
Chair Swire called the meeting to order at 6:02 PM.

Name Agency Jan Mar May
2025 | 2025 | 2025

Public

Matthew Self County of San Mateo X

Malcolm Robinson San Bruno X X

Alan Uy — Vice Chair | Daly City X X

Angela Hey Portola Valley X X

Justin Yuen South San Francisco X X

Mike Swire - Chair San Mateo X X

Jean Yang Redwood City X*
Elected

Flor Nicolas South San Francisco X' X

Mary Bier Pacifica X X X

Patrick Sullivan Foster City X X

Desiree Thayer Burlingame X' X X

Stephen Rainaldi Millbrae X* X

Isabella Chu Redwood City X

Paul Nagengast Half Moon Bay X*

Greg Wright Pacifica X*

" Attended meeting online via Assembly Bill 2449.
*First meeting.
C/CAG Staff present: Audrey Shiramizu, Sean Charpentier, Eva Gaye.

Guests: Andrew Wong (City of Burlingame), Andrew Yang (City of Burlingame), Matt Jones
(Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition), Cassie Halls (SamTrans), Charlsie Chang (SamTrans), Nick
Yee (SamTrans), Ana Vasudeo (SamTrans), Theresa Vallez-Kelly (San Mateo County Office of
Education), Jim Cowing, Jennifer Johnson (City of Burlingame Traffic, Safety & Parking
Commission), and others in attendance.

ITEM 3



Chair Swire introduced the newest Committee members: Councilmember Isabella Chu from the
City of Redwood City, Councilmember Paul Nagengast from the City of Half Moon Bay,
Councilmember Greg Wright from the City of Pacifica, and Public Member Jean Yang from the
City of Redwood City.

C/CAG staff requested moving all action items earlier in the agenda. Agenda item 4 moved to
item number 6.

2. Public comment on items not on the agenda

Matt Jones from the Silicon Valley Bicycle Coalition commented on the Bike to Wherever
Day earlier in the month and thanked Vice Chair Uy for volunteering at the event.

3. Approval of the Minutes from the January 23, 2025 Meeting
There were no public comments on the minutes.

Motion: Member Bier motioned to approve the minutes. Member Robinson seconded the
motion. Members Nicolas, Nagengast, Hey, and Yang abstained. All other members in
attendance voted to approve. The motion passed.

4. Review and recommend approval of the reallocation, budget adjustment, and time
extension of Transportation Development Act Article 3 Funds for the City of
Burlingame’s Murchison Drive, Trousdale Drive, and Davis Drive Project

C/CAG staff Audrey Shiramizu introduced the Transportation Development Article 3, or TDA
Article 3 project extension request and $100,000 budget adjustment for the City of Burlingame.
Andy Wong and Andrew Yang from the City of Burlingame presented the project updates and
reasoning for extension and budget adjustment. After discussion, staff requested the committee
make a motion to recommend approval of the extension and budget adjustment.

Vice Chair Uy asked if City staff still uses Level of Service (LOS) for traffic engineering.
Andy responded that yes, LOS is still used for California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) purposes.

Member Chu asked to look at Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) instead of LOS. C/CAG
Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that VMT is a better tool at major project level,
not operational level, and does not have granularity at every intersection.

Vice Chair Uy asked if the committee still needs to assess traffic output as part of projects.
C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier responded yes, and VMT does not capture the
assessment. Vice Chair Uy noted that the committee still needs to assess traffic output as part
of projects.

Chair Swire asked if the city is required to conduct LOS, VMT, greenhouse gas emission, or
collision analyses. Andy noted that the City follows standard practice for those analyses.



Member Yang asked if staff considered putting bike lanes through different roads. Andy
noted that in the Master Plan, staff looked at other options. He also noted that Murchison
Drive is shared with Millbrae.

Member Hey asked why staff recommends the City return funds when there are not enough
funds. In response, Chair Swire added that returning 25% of the funds does not seem enough.

Member Yang noted that the updated bike lane network does not seem contiguous. She asked
if staff considered alternative configurations to keep the lane contiguous. Andy
acknowledged and confirmed that they considered alternative configurations but recognized
that the transition from Murchison Drive to Trousdale Drive would become narrow.

Vice Chair Uy asked if a 2-way bike lane and a pilot were considered. He also asked if
alternate uses of the $100,000, like hardscaping, were considered. Andy noted that it was a
pilot project and that the 2-way bike lane was considered on California Drive but conflicts
with cars pulling out. He also noted that there are currently quick build bulbouts at Trousdale
Drive and staff could review making them hardscaped.

Vice Chair Uy asked what if the committee does not take an action. C/CAG Executive
Director Sean Charpentier noted that there would be a risk of losing the TDA 3 funds and
that staff plans to bring the extension request to the June C/CAG Board meeting.

Member Rainaldi asked if TDA 3 could fund Safe Routes to School (SRTS). C/CAG
Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that staff is trying to integrate with the Local
Roadway Safety Plan (LRSP), which most cities now have.

Public Member Jennifer Johnson from City of Burlingame Traffic, Safety & Parking
Commission noted that most cyclists to school are in junior high, and Trousdale does not have
many bikers because children have difficulties navigating the steep terrain. She added that the
city has done a good job of finding traffic patterns, and resistance to the project mostly involved
congestion around Mills-Peninsula Medical Center.

C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that the recommended options are an
extension, clawing back $100k from the City of Burlingame, or keeping the $100k to make
the project area safer and better.

Member Robinson asked if the committee could recommend that Burlingame keeps the
money and keeps sharrows on Trousdale. Member Nagengast cautioned the committee not to
act as design engineers and suggested that Burlingame city engineers should decide what is
best.

Member Chu noted that sharrows are often not beneficial and asked if there is a way to
repurpose money to make Davis Drive and cross streets safer and add improvements instead.
Andy noted that staff are planning to put bulbouts on Davis and that there are currently quick
build bulbouts on Trousdale that staff would like to phase forward. Member Wright



commented that he was unsatisfied with the project change but noted the positive changes as
well. He suggested that it would be beneficial to use this project as an example or precedent
on how to prevent this situation from happening again.

Member Rainaldi commended the City for continuing with Murchison efforts.

C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that there is a tradeoff risk and balancing
act — C/CAG wants cities to push the envelope and not just apply for safe projects.

C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier asked what the quick build elements are. Andy
noted that the element is removable striping and not a raised curb. He acknowledged that
Davis has two intersections and Trousdale already has quick build bulbouts at Quesada and
Upper Castaneda. C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier asked if staff could make the
quick builds hardscape. Andy noted that staff needs to do further research.

Member Chu asked what the High Injury Network is (HIN) and if it is for adults or children.
Member Self noted that it is under the County Office of Education and includes published
injuries for children.

Member Rainaldi asked if the quick builds are already completed. Andy noted that the
Trousdale quick builds have been completed for a couple years.

Member Rainaldi agreed with Member Wright that clawing back $100k is already a
statement, and if higher, how it may impact the project budget. Andrew noted that clawing
back 50% would impact Murchison since the construction cost increased at least $100k.

Member Thayer noted that for Burlingame City Council, it was a difficult decision and
Trousdale no longer became feasible. She suggested that the project still provides 75% of the
benefits with the connection to Mills High School on Murchison, the connection to
Caltrain/BART, and the high frequency Burlingame Intermediate student crossing of El
Camino at Davis. She also noted that Trousdale is a steep street and difficult for children to
bike on.

Member Nagengast asked if Millbrae benefits from Murchison. Member Rainaldi noted that
Millbrae does benefit.

Member Yang suggested that Burlingame keep all funds. C/CAG Executive Director Sean
Charpentier noted that if funds are kept, the project elements would need to remain the same.

Motion: Member Wright motioned to recommend approval of request for the reallocation,
25% reduction budget adjustment, and time extension of Transportation Development Act
(TDA) Article 3 Funds for the City of Burlingame’s Murchison Drive, Trousdale Drive, and
Davis Drive Project. Member Robinson seconded the motion. Member Hey voted no. All
other members in attendance voted to approve. The motion passed.



5. Review and confirm receipt of MTC Complete Streets Checklist from SamTrans for the
El Camino Real: Fast Tracking Corridor-Wide Implementation of a Safe, Connected,
Transit-Oriented Boulevard Project

Cassie Halls from SamTrans introduced the MTC Complete Streets Checklist for the
SamTrans project EI Camino Real: Fast Tracking Corridor-Wide Implementation of a Safe,
Connected, Transit-Oriented Boulevard Project.

Member Hey asked if there were any considerations to make a raised separate concrete path
above El Camino Real (ECR). Cassie noted that the project is still in the visioning stage and
staff are open to feedback. She added that ultimately, projects are moved forward locally.

Member Yang asked how staff is conducting outreach. Cassie noted that staff just kicked off
their Central ECR Plan and are hoping to hear soon. Cassie also noted that the Grand
Boulevard Initiative (GBI) is largely being advanced by city staff now and staff will have
larger engagement soon.

Member Hey asked if staff are looking at the bus designs since buses have front racks. Cassie
noted that staff are not looking at bus designs now but can share feedback.

Motion: Member Robinson motioned to confirm receipt and review MTC Complete Streets
Checklist from SamTrans for the EI Camino Real: Fast Tracking Corridor-Wide
Implementation of a Safe, Connected, Transit-Oriented Boulevard Project. Member Rainaldi
seconded the motion. All members in attendance voted to approve. The motion passed.

6. Receive the San Mateo County Safe Routes to School Program Annual Report for
Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Theresa Vallez-Kelly from the San Mateo County Office of Education presented on the
2023-2024 San Mateo County Safe Routes to School Program Annual Report for Fiscal Year
2023-2024.

Member Hey asked how many initiatives come from school, BPAC, City Council, or other
agencies. She also asked who initiates Safe Routes to School and which agencies. Theresa
noted that it depends on which program the agency would participate in. For example, for
educational activities and some small capital and infrastructure grants, the school would
initiate but for the school travel fellowship, the city takes initiative.

Member Robinson asked who initiates audits and why some cities do or do not. Theresa
noted that there are many factors. She noted that these factors can include the High Injury
Network (HIN) and recent incidents in proximity to schools. She noted that SRTS reaches
out to cities first to inquire about participation interest before reaching out to the school.

Member Self asked for clarification on what the HIN is. Theresa noted that Alta Planning and
Design and SRTS worked to look at roadways throughout the county with high youth injuries
and compiled a youth-based HIN. She also noted that every city has an online 1-pager with a



map that outlines HIN in each city.

Member Self also asked if the committee could do a group audit. C/CAG Executive Director
Sean Charpentier noted that staff need to notice it officially. Theresa added that SRTS is
planning audits in fall and invited committee members/cities.

Member Self asked what the committee can do to help SRTS overall. Theresa noted that the
committee could help with including SRTS as part of a grant application component and the
Infrastructure for Rebuilding America grant program (INFRA) if they support walking/biking
near a school. C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that C/CAG does include
SRTS within a 1-mile radius.

Theresa noted that the fellowship is very helpful and beneficial. She also asked if the
committee could help SRTS recruit cities and their Public Works staff to apply. She noted
that STRS is in cycle 4 but only eight cities have participated. C/CAG Staff Eva Gaye noted
that SRTS can provide the list of previous participants. C/CAG Executive Director Sean
Charpentier noted that C/CAG sends out the fellowship application to committees and
elected officials when it opens.

Member Communications

Member Bier mentioned that the Pacifica Pride Parade is on June 7" which includes a Car
Parade and a festival.

Member Hey announced that Portola Valley has a new Public Works Director and that flashing
beacons were installed.

Member Yang noted that the cross walk she requested was installed, and that she lives at a 5-
way intersection and is now proposing closing 1 of the 5 streets.

Member Robinson noted that the City of San Bruno decided not to enforce and cite for
daylighting.

Member Nicolas noted that the City of South San Francisco is finishing up their Every Kid
Deserves a Bike Program before the school year ends.

Member Wright noted that the onboard for BPAC was appreciated and went smoothly with a
warm welcome.

Member Rainaldi noted that the City of Millbrae completed a bicycle rodeo.
Chair Mike Swire noted attending an Atherton meeting and they approved the slow speed
limits for the first time for all schools, but did not implement sidewalks. He added that

Redwood City just implemented more slow speed limits around their schools.

Member Thayer noted that Burlingame will hold another meeting for North Rollins Road for



updates including sidewalks and bike lanes.

Chair Mike Swire noted that there is a 101/92 highway widening project direct connector
which has a lot of opposition in the safe streets community. He noted that the San Mateo City
Council unanimously supported a letter to C/CAG opposing the project.

Chair Mike Swire noted that unfortunately, a cyclist was lost in Atherton recently in front of
Encinal Elementary School and was instantly killed when hit by a garbage truck in the bike
lane. He added that there was a 17-year-old girl in Redwood City recently who was put in
critical condition after being hit by a speeding car while walking through a crosswalk.

C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that the Half Moon Bay TDA extension
request came in late and could not be included on this BPAC meeting agenda and will go
directly to the Board in June. He added that C/CAG will send an email to the committee with
the Board item if members have comments. He also noted that the MTC is recruiting
community advisory committee members and that staff will send the notice to the committee.
He thanked the committee for tonight’s deliberation.

. Adjournment

Chair Swire adjourned the meeting at 8:41 PM.



